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THE THIRTY-NINTH ANNUAL REPORT

For THE PERIOD 15T APRIL, 1974 TO 31ST MARCH, 1975

Proceedings of the Annual General Meeting, 1974

HE TWENTY-NINTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the Associa-
Ttion. being the thirty-ninth since the opening of thg Museum, was
held on Tuesday, 22nd October, I‘_)74. at 2.30 p.m. m‘thc (_-Ouncil
Chamber of the Guildhall, Cambridge. The Mayor, (.()unqlllor P.
J. Warren. President of the Folk Museum Association, presided

Apologies were received from Mr. A. W. Arundale, Councillors
Mrs. J. Barker and B. W. George, Dr. G. H. S. Bushnell, Mr. §.
Bowles, Dr. G. E. Daniel, Sir Hamilton Kerr, Hon. Councillor
Mrs. M. E. Henn, Mrs. J. Northcott, Mrs. S. Purkis.

Before proceeding to the business of the meeting, the Chairman
referred to the great loss sustained by the Association by the recent
death of Mr. John Saltmarsh, who had served on the Council of
Management since the Museum opened in 1936. For many years he
had represented the Council of the Senate of the University before
being elected a Vice-President. A regular attendant at meetings and a
frequent visitor to the Museum, he would be greatly missed. The
Chairman referred, also, to the death in July, 1974 of Mr. N. O.

Higgins, a life member of the Association. He asked members to
stand in silence.

The Minutes of the previous Annual General Meeting, held on
23rd Octpber, 1973, which were printed in the Annual Report
already circulated to members, were then confirmed and signed.



During the consideration of .tthg ff\tr;)relu;li ugeefgrgnzhia%ui%t;r

erred to the matter of security 1n : ’
t‘rg:leowing two thefts durifng thc(ci ;t))astthyeezggctll:ﬁyggvf; :e(:.n(l)ef ie;:;sect;(t);
anxiety. She had been informed by . :
?’g?ilget}that. ideally, the Museum should be provided wn(h ftll';::lg
metal-framed cases and that an alarm system should be ins ad hé,
The Chairman said that the cost of this would be very hlgh,. an :
thought that any money availablg should go to the provnsllc:n ?d
storage space. Councillor Mrs, Nicol asked “./hcther steps s ouh
not be taken, in consultation with the City Archltgct, for, at legst, the
gradual provision of improved cases. The Chairman promised to
look into the matter. The Annual Report was then adopted on the
proposal of Councillor Mrs. J. Fitch seconded by Mr. G. O. Vinter.

Appointment of Auditors

Mr. E. E. Harmer proposed that Messrs. Chater & Myhill be
re-appointed auditors for the year ending 31st March, 1975.
Seconded by Councillor Mrs. Lipstein the motion was carried.

Election of Officers

It was proposed from the Chair, and carried, that Sir Hamilton
Kerr be re-elected Patron of the Museum. Councillor Mrs. Nicol
proposed, and Mr. G. O. Vinter seconded, that the President,
Vice-Presidents, Elected Members and Treasurer be re-elected. This
was carried. It was proposed from the Chair, and carried, that Mr.
F. A. Reeve be elected as a Vice-President in the place of the late

Mr. Saltmarsh. Mr. Reeve, until 31st March, 1974, had been a
member of th; old County Council



TREASURER’S REPORT

We ended the year with a deficit of £370 compared with a surplus
of £120 for the previous year. Our balancgs at the bank were
depleted by almost £1,000, ending the year with a net overdrgft of
£580. Although there was this large outﬂqw of funds, part will be
made up in the current year when a special grant of £600 will be

receivable from the City Corporation.

During the year we had a burglar alarm system installed at a cost
of almost £600, for which sum a grant will be obtained.

We were, in common with many other bodies, affected by the
inflationary trends; to help to overcome this the admission fees to
the Museum were increased from January 1st, 1975.

On the income side, the total income, apart from grants, was
marginally less. We lost our rental income from Abbey House of
£480 per annum but, on the other hand, we received an increased
sum from donations and subscriptions. Takings at the Museum,
including sale of guide books and postcards, improved from £555 to
£835.

The curator’s salary is now based on local government scales, as a
result of which expenditure in the year, on this item, increased from
£1,250 to £2,012. Increases overall WEre seen in many other items of
expenditure, and we have done well to contain the costs to the figures
shown in the accounts.

We are, of course, grateful to those people and bodies who
subscribe so generously to Museum funds, and to the Councils who
make grants to us. A list of names appears at the end of the Report.

CURATOR’S REPORT

Attendance at the Museum in the year ended 31st March, 1975,
reached the record figure of 15,225. tudent visitors from this country

Staﬂ‘qrdshlre. The Museum was opened in the evening, on several
al organisations.

Three exhibitions were held durin ' Jown,
. 8 the year: Town and Gown,
Old Cambridge Hlustrated and K. A. Moden~Cambridge Cartoonist.

For the last-named much original 5 e Pr.
R. G. Friedlander. g material was kindly lent by



The Curator gave a number of talks in the city and county during
the year and attended meetings of the Curators’ Panel and of the
Museums Working Group to discuss the future of all the Cambridge-
shire museums. The Museum continued to provide an information
service to enquirers by letter, telephone and in person, some 1,036
enquiries being dealt with.

The installation of a burglary alarm and of an alarm system linked
to several display cases has relieved the Curator of a good deal of
anxiety regarding security,

Twelve new postcards were published during the year. They are
reproductions in sepia of some of the Museum’s drawings and prints
of old Cambridge, and are proving very popular,

Accessions received during the year are listed at the end of the
Annual Report. Notable among them is the large collection of salz
bills, given by Mr. E. Mynott, relating to Cambridgeshire properties
from the 1850s to 1880s. These provide useful information on farms,
farmhouses, inns, mills, breweries, etc., and on field names. They are
accompanied by maps and, in the case of the sale of local mansions,
by coloured lithographs of the houses.

The brass plate of the first University Typewriting Office at 33
Trinity Street was preserved by the donor, Miss M. Sutherland,
when the office was demolished in 1958 for extensions to Trinity
College. The plate bears the name of Mrs. Marshall, who established
the office in 1892. On her retirement in 1900, her name was scored
through on the plate—presumably in the interests of economy—and
that of her successor, Miss Pate, engraved below.

Mr. E. A. Phillips kindly presented one of the arm badges worn by
the men formerly employed by the University Boat Club to run along
the tow-path carrying the oarsmen’s clothes to the finishing post.
Records of the Boat Club contain several entries of payments made
to the “badge men”.

Another badge, found under Banham’s boathouse during demoli-
tion and given by Mr. D. Larkin, has been identified as that of the
Ist or 8th Cambridgeshire Volunteer Rifle Corps. These Corps,
raised in Cambridge in 1860, were amalgamated in 1862 as the 1st
Administrative Battalion, Cambridgeshire Volunteers; in 1881 they
became the 1st (Cambs.) Volunteer Battalion, the Suffolk Regiment.

The Electrolux refrigerator given by Mr. D. Hart is the first model
produced by the company. It is, fortunately, small enough to go into
the kitchen ; the offer of a 19th century ice box had, unfortunately, to
be refused on account of its size and weight. It eventually went out of
the county. Our shortage of space is an ever-increasing problem and
one for which a solution must be found before long.
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A very welcome gift was that of the two aldermen’s gowns formerly
worn bg' the late Alderman K. C. Kerridge and presented by his
widow. A special display case has been made for them and they make

a handsome addition to Room 4.

Our thanks are due to Mr. R. S. Burrows and his brother for
presenting the five framed watercolours painted by their mother,
Margaret Wadsworth, between 1900 and 1905, probably at art
classes. Two of them-—the Wrestlers Inn, Petty Cury and Falcon
Yard—are excellent copies of 19th century engravings.

The large, garlanded stone urn which stood at the top of the
Norwich Union building at the corner of St. Andrew’s Street and
Downing Street, was brought to the Museum, when the building was
demolished in 1974, and set up in the yard. The urn, along with the
other fine stonework on the Norwich Union premises, was probably
made in Sawston in 1909-10.

A large collection of extremely interesting photographs of town
and university events between the years 1905 and 1933, made by the
late Mr. J. E. Scott, was received from Mrs. M. Snazle and Miss G.
Scott and is a welcome addition to our photographic collection.
Thanks are due, too, to Ms. A. E. Jones who has continued to add to
that collection by the gift of photographs of streets and buildings
threatened with change or demolition.

From Magdalene College we have received, on long-term loan, a
number of items which were formerly in Toft Manor, home of the
late Mr. G. M. Macfarlane-Grieve. They include a collection of
miniature horses and other animals made by Mr. Macfarlane-
Grieve’s sisters when, as children, they lived in Impington Hall at the
turn of the century, books of the children’s own drawings, table

gzll)rpes, a Victorian fitted picnic basket and a number of domestic
objects.

_ The University Museum of Archaeology and Ethnology has placed
in the Museum, on long-term loan, certain objects which are more
suitable for display in a folk museum. They include 19th century
wooden gingerbread moulds, pastry crimpers, a replica of a wicker
bed-bug trap and the signs, painted by Richard Hopkins Leach in

on Madingley Road, the Hop Bine in Fair Street and the John Gilpin
in Gold Street.



LIFE MEMBERS

1974 —<1975

(Donors of £10.50 and upwards)

Mrs. C. Armstrong

T. W. Bagshawe

Cambridge Preservation Society
Christ’s College

Clare College

Downing College

Emmanuel College

Gonville and Caius College
Girton College

E. B. Haddon

Homerton College
The Leys School

L. F. Newman
Pembroke College
Queens’ College

Mrs. Rees Thomas

St. Catharine’s College
Trinity College

Mrs. Dudley Ward

ORDINARY MEMBERS
(Annual subscribers of £1 and upwards)

A. W. Arundale

A. A. Bird

B. G. Bowles

Dr. G. H. S. Bushnell

Cambridge Antiquarian Society

Cambridge and District
Co-operative Society

Cambridge Branch-—National

Union of Teachers

B. G. W. Cash

Christ’s College

Miss S. Cullen

T. S. Culver

Mrs. M. Dean

Mrs. W. A. Earp

Emmanuel College

P. Ford

Dr. H. Chandlee Forman
T. N. Gallyon

Gonville & Caius College
E. B. Haddon

S. C. Humphrey

Jesus College

A. E. Jones

King’s College

Dr. G. Kitson-Clark
Magdalene College

Mrs. B. E. Morris

N. Phillips

Mrs. F. H. Sandbach

J. K. Taylor

Trinity College

ASSOCIATE MEMBERS
(Annual subscribers of 50p and upwards)

H. Alexander

W. J. Cairns

A. J. Covell

Mrs. C. J. Covell

J. Death

Professor W. Erbach
Miss D. Girdler
Miss Z. S. Glover

GRANTS

Mrs. and Mrs, E. Jackson
B. J. Matthew

C. H. Malyon

D. J. Muggleton

E. Neuberg

A. Rolfe

C. Scott

V.
S.
.
Mrs. J. V. Treherne

Cambridge Corporation
Cambridgeshire County Council
City Education Committee
County Education Committee
South Cambs. District Council

DONATION

Anglia Television Ltd.
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LIST OF PRINCIPAL ACCESSIONS
April 1974 to March 1975

Social Life
The Army
BADGE, for wear on belt, of the st or 8th Cambridgeshire Rifle
Volunteers, 1862-81. Mr. D. Larkin.

Auction Sales
SALE BILLS, collection of, 1850s to 1880s. Mr. E. Mynott.

Clubs and Societies
BADGE worn by the “badgemen’ employed by the Cambridge
University Boat Club, early 20th century. Mr. E, A_ Phillips.

Education
SAMPLER worked by pupil at Barway School, 1895. Mrs. R. Carter.

SLATE used by pupil at Mr. Lloyd’s School, Castle Street, 1890.
Mr. D. Unwin.

SCHOOL TEXT BOOKS, 1868-1909. Mrs. N. Chapman.

BADGE: member of Paradise Street Higher Grade School Cricket
Club, 1901. Mrs. M. Phypers.

Local Government

ALDERMEN’S GOWNS, 2, black and scarlet. Mrs. Brown.

The Household
House Fittings

PANTILE, ribbed glass, c. 1880, from Harston. Mr. R. Wilson.

WATER TAP, large brass, from Jarrett’s Cottage, Wandlebury,
¢. 1900. Mr. B. Clark.

The Kitchen

KETTLE, Shield Patent, with handle designed to reduce risk of
scalding. c. 1920. Mr. L. Waters.

KETTLE, electric, c. 1918. Mr. H. Alexander,
SAUCEPANS (2), 8 pint and 6 pint, cast iron, ¢. 1900. Anon.
ICED PUDDING MOULD, pewter, c. 1898. Mr. D. Stubbinsg.

JELLY MOULD, glazed earthenware, } pint. Late 19th century.
The Curator.

Domestic Appliances
REFRIGERATOR, Electrolux, 1927, Mr. D. Hart.

DOLLY WASHING TUB, zine, with wooden Dolly, ¢. 1900.
Mrs. J. Williams.
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General Household Objects

HOT WATER BOTTLES (2), glazed stoneware. Early 20th century.
Mr. L. Waters.

CUP & SAUCER, porcelain with coloured transfer views of
Cambridge buildings, 1895, The Curator.

The Individual
Objects of Personal Use

MOURNING BROOCHES (3), late 19th century. Mrs. M. Phypers.

PUSH CHAIR, child’s collapsible, purchased in Cambridge in 1904.
Mr. G. Carter.

Toys and Games

CARD GAME: Sum-It, c. 1930. Mrs. C. Taylor.

DOLLS® HOUSE FURNITURE, modern. Mrs. Treherne and the
Curator.

SCRAPS, coloured Victorian, with collection of pull-out cardboard
farm models. Mrs. E. Farley.

Occupations
Boat Builder

BRASS PLATES (3), inscribed with the names of the former

Cambridge boat builders: Searle, Pocock and Winter. Mr. D.
Larkin.

Brewer

BEER JAR, glazed stoneware, transfer-printed Warboys, Brewer,
Sturton St., Cambridge, c. 1890. Mr. P. Doggett.

BEER BOTTLE, embossed Treadway & Percy, Brewers, Soham.
Early 20th cent. Mr. L. Waters.

Designer
ICE SKATES, pair of, designed, c. 1895, by A. Goodman of

Bluntisham, to obviate use of screw in heel of boot. Mr. C. F.
Tebbutt,

Grocer

TEA, packet of Hallack’s China. Purchased in 1920s from Hall
& Bond’s shop of Market Hill. Miss K. M. Johnson. -

BOTTLE, embossed Matthew & Son Ltd., Grocers, Trinity Street
Mr. L. Waters. .

Medicine Vendor

ADVERTISEMENT for The Cambridge Six-Hour Ointment,

marketed from the 1880s to ¢. 1901. b C. Di .
Street. Mr. R. Law. » by C. Dixon of Downing
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Scale Maker
SPRING BALANCE, Salter’s Trade model, used by strawberry

pickers at Guyhirn, ¢. 1900. Purchased.

Typewriting b . ‘ 43

BRASS PLATE of the original Un'lversny Typewriting Office
established in Trinity St., 1892. Miss M. Sutherland.

Water Colours, Engravings, etc.

Pen and wash drawing of the corner of Sidney Street and Sussex
Street, 1921. The late Mrs. A. Griffith.,

Five framed water-colours of Cambridge by Margaret A. Wads-
worth, painted between 1900 and 1905. Mr. R. S. Burrows and
family.

Water-colour of the present Carlton Way before it was developed in
the 1950s. Mrs. A. Price.

Engraving of Jesus Lane, 1921; Lithographs of the high-back bridge,
Chesterton Rd., 1893; Chesterton Lane Corner, 1911. Mrs. M
Phypers.

Printed Material

Books and Pamphlets

First Eastern General Gazette, Nos. 7 and 11. Published in 1915 for
the patients and staff of the Ist Eastern General Hospital in
Cambridge. Mrs. M. Brinkley.

Cartalogue of the first exhibition of Cambridge portraits and cari-
catures held by the Cambridge Antiquarian Society, 1908. The
Curator.

Reminiscences of Trumpington 50 Years Ago. S. P. Widnall, 1889.
Miss M. Smith. |

A Hundred Years in a Cambridge Parish (St. Luke’s). G. T. Tibbatts,
1974. The Curator.

Harston: History and Local Records. H. C. Greene, 1937. Miss K.
Johnson. :

Huntingdonshire Folklore. C. F. Tebbutt, 1952. Extracts from the
Assize Rolls of Hunts. in the 17th century. C. F. Tebbutt, 1943.
Transactions of the Cambs. & Hunts. Archaeological Society.

Diamond Jubilee, 1888-1949, of C. G. Tebbutt, Ltd., St. Neots.
Mr. C. F. Tebbutt.

Dixon’s Directory of Cambridge, 1910. Mr. L. Waters.

Cassey & Co.’s Directory of Cambs. and Herts. 1864. Mr. E. A.
Rutherford.

Kelly’s Directories of Cambridge, 1955 and 1962. The Curator.

100 Years of Sunday School Work in Cambridge, 1807-1907. Miss K.
Johnson,

Reminiscences of Sidney Sussex College, 1902-1945. T. Knox Shaw.
Mr. R. C. Andrew.

Handbook of Fen Skating. E. & A. Goodman, 1882. Mr. C. F.
Tebbutt.
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Programmes
First Smoking Concert held in Trinity College, 1888. Mrs. M.
Snazle and Miss G. Scott.

Performances of the local amateur group ‘‘The Sorrjes“. New
Theatre, Cambridge, December 1910. Dr. R. G. Friedlander.

Photographs

John Child, blacksmith, and sons, in the Northampton Street forge,
c. 1900. Mr. W. Powell.

H. Johnson & Nephew's Bookstall in Burrell's Walk, 1914-1918:
Skaters on the Backs, 1947. Miss K. Johnson.

J. G. Mortlock in garden of Meldreth Court, Meldreth, with
employees from his London china shop, 1913. Mr. E. Mynott.

Farmworkers at Reach, 1890. Mrs. N, Chapman.
Impington Hall, interior views of c. 1898. per Magdalene College.
Pitt Club, interior views of. Mr. D. Pepys Whiteley.

University Typewriting Office, Trinity St., before demolition in 1952
Miss M. Sutherland.

Views of Wisbech, c. 1904. The Curator.
Petty Cury and Alexandra Street, 1971. Mr. J. Nicholson.

Entrance Hall of Lion Hotel, 1904: staff of the hotel on party boat on
river, c. 1895. per Mrs. Parish.

Warboys’ grocery shop, Castle St., c. 1884. Mr. D. Unwin.

Market St., 1904; Hills Road near Lensfield Rd., 1906:; Silver St.
1906. Mrs. Byles.

Infants’ Class and members of staff of the Eden St. Higher Grade
School, 1896. per Mr. C. C. Scott.

Collection of photographs, taken in 1974 and 1975, of Cambridge

properties threatened with demolition or alteration. A. E.
Jones,

Collection of Cambridge photographs, 1905-1918, collected by the
late Mr. J. E. Scott, including: May Ball group, 1905; Mock
Funeral Procession, 1910; Esperanto Congress delegates and
leaders, 1907; unveiling of the S. African War memorial tablet
on Gt. St. Mary’s church wall, 1905;: W. B. R. Moorhouse and
his monoplane, 19] I'; honorary degree day processions (King
Gustav of Sweden, 1900. T. Roosevelt, 1910); the cricketers
Tom Haywprd and Prince Ranjitsinhji; spectators at May
Races, rowing eights on river, members of the Cambridge
poys’ Brigade and the Albert Club, 1910; queuing for margarine
in Petty Cury, 1918: students’ anti-war demonstration, 1933,
€lc., etc. Mrs. M. Snazle and Miss G. Scott,
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CAMBRIDGE AND COUNTY FOLK MUSEUM

(Incorporated 5th June, 1946)

INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT

1973/74 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 318T MARCH, 1975
£ £ INCOME £ £
76 Ordinary Subscriptions 105.23
6 Associate Subscriptions 12.56
117.79
4 Donations . » 40.00
460 Receivat R
Rents Receiva e_ﬁ 40.00
Grants:;—
250 Cambs, & Isle of Ely C.C. 1974/75 350.00
50 City Education Committee iy
300 350.00
290 Less: South Cambs. R.D.C. reserved
at 1.4.73 and not received . —
10 e —— 350.00
5SS Gal Admission Fees, Guides, Post-
cards, Royalties and Donations
to Museum Box .. e 836.89
49 Interest on: Lloyds Bank Deposit
Alc o o o 71.96
1,440 1,416.64
Less Expenses:
861 Rent, Rates, Insurance  950.79
215 Heat, Light and Water  377.69
Repairs, Redecorations
and General Mainten-
83 ance .. Gt 235.25
2 Repairs to Museum
Contents o —
61 Cleaning and Cleaners
Wages .. 47.19
1,610.92
1,250 Resident Curator—
Salary .. > 2,012.00
150 Pension Allocation
Contributions . -l
88 National Insurance and
Graduated Pensions 143.80
26 Honorarium to Treasurer 26.25
178  Printing, Postage,
Sti:ltlgner : 'IElephone
and dundry Expenses 236.90
22 Audit and Accountancy 32.40
73  Museum Purchases 39.58 445138
61 Mgseum guides and
osicards . . 184 .41
3 _— .
0 223,99
: 4,286.26
i’.’i’g Balance being Deficit for the Year £2,869.62
1,750 By City Corporation Gran
ks : t :
1,630 Less: it for the Year . . %;3232‘2)
(Excess) £120  Balance being Deficit Jor the Year £369.62
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(Incorporated 5th June, 1946)

BALANCE SHEET As AT 31sT MARCH 1975

£

2,250.00

2,250.00
100.00
54.61
588.69

493.98

493.98

369.62

CAMBRIDGE AND COUNTY FOLK MUSEUM

2,250.00

1.64
3.33
3.98
642.31
216.40

3,117.66

2,993.30

£124.36

£124.36

the Companies Acts 1948 and

CHATER & MYHILL
ACCOUNTANTS

1973/74
£ £ EMPLOYMENT OF CAPITAL
Fixed Assets:
Investments:
Commercial Union Insurance De-
ferred Annuity Pension (Curator)
2,250 Add: Premium paid during Year .
Current Assets
227 Balance at Bank — Current A/c No. |
102 Current A/c No. 2
R1 Deposit Account
4 Cash in Hand " by '
83 Sundry Debtors and Prepayments .
283 Stock—Museum Guides, etc.
3,030
Liabilities:
2,250 Reserve for Pension (Curator)
100 Reserve for future Repairs . .
186 Sundry Creditors .. -
~—  Overdraft at Bank—No. 1 A/c
2,536 ———
£494 Net Capital Employed
Represented by:
3,928 General Fund at Ist April, 1974 ..
120 Add: Excess of Income over Ex-
penditure . . b 2 Vo
196 LO:; to City Corporation written
4,244
3,750 Less: Abbey House taken over by
City Coi':pxomtion Iy i
- Ext%m thoef Y diture over Income
r ear >
W e o .
In our opinion the Accoun O .
of the tate of the Society's aflais at 315t Masch 19a4- oy o 404 fair view
: ) 0 '
the year ended on that date and comply with s Debiett for
CAMBRIDGE,
20,5.75

15

10 Jesus Lane.



